Michigan Bar Journal July 2015

Orders of Discipline and Disability

Disbarment

Jeffrey B. Hollander, P49306, Farming-
ton Hills, by the Attorney Discipline Board,
affirming Tri-County Hearing Panel #60’s
order of disbarment, effective May 1, 2010.!

The respondent appeared at the hearing
but was found to be in default for failing
to file an answer to the formal complaint.
Based on the respondent’s default, the hear-
ing panel found that the respondent prac-
ticed law while disbarred, in violation of
MCR 9.119(E)(1); held himself out as an at-
torney while disbarred from the practice of
law, in violation of MCR 9.119(E)(4); en-
gaged in conduct contrary to justice, ethics,
honesty, or good morals, in violation of
MCR 9104(3); violated an order of disci-
pline, in violation of MCR 9.104(9); engaged
in conduct that is a violation of the Michi-
gan Rules of Professional Conduct, contrary
to MRPC 8.4(a) and MCR 9.104(4); and en-
gaged in conduct involving dishonesty,
fraud, deceit, misrepresentation, or violation
of the criminal law, where such conduct
reflects adversely on the lawyer’s honesty,
trustworthiness, or fitness as a lawyer, in
violation of MRPC 8.4(b).

The panel ordered that the respondent
be disbarred, retroactive to May 1, 2010. The
respondent filed a delayed petition for re-
view, which was granted. Upon review, the
Attorney Discipline Board affirmed the hear-
ing panel’s order of disbarment. Total costs
were assessed in the amount of $2,263.19.

1. The respondent has been continuously suspended from

the practice of law in Michigan since April 15, 2009.

Please see notice of revocation (by consent], issued
April 15, 2009.

Disbarment (By Consent)

Kenneth A. Flaska, P28605, Grosse
Pointe, by the Attorney Discipline Board,
Tri-County Hearing Panel #28, effective
April 14, 2014.!

The respondent was convicted in the
U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of
Michigan, by plea, for the felonies of bank
fraud, in violation of 18 USC 1344; and
laundering monetary instruments of a value
over $10,000, in violation of 18 USC 1957(a)
and (D).

The grievance administrator filed a no-
tice of judgment of conviction on March 11,

2015. In accordance with MCR 9.115(F)(5),
the parties filed a stipulation for a consent
order of discipline on May 7, 2015, which
was approved by the Attorney Grievance
Commission and accepted by the hearing
panel. Based on the respondent’s convic-
tion and his admission in the stipulation,
the hearing panel found that he had com-
mitted professional misconduct, in viola-
tion of MCR 9.104(5).

The hearing panel ordered that the re-
spondent be disbarred from the practice
of law in Michigan, effective April 14, 2014,
the date of the court’s acceptance of the
respondent’s guilty plea. Total costs were
assessed in the amount of $977.88.

1. The respondent has not been practicing law in

Michigan since July 1, 2013, the date the State Bar
of Michigan accepted his letter of resignation.

Automatic Reinstatements

Derrick N. Okonmah, P68221, Clark-
ston, effective May 29, 2015.

The respondent was suspended from the
practice of law in Michigan for 179 days, ef-
fective June 10, 2014. In accordance with
MCR 9.123(A), the suspension was termi-
nated with the respondent’s filing of an
affidavit of compliance with the Michigan
Supreme Court on May 29, 2015.

Paul F. Semperger, P20214, Plymouth,
effective May 18, 2015.

The respondent was suspended from the
practice of law in Michigan for 179 days, ef-
fective September 23, 2014. In accordance
with MCR 9.123(A), the suspension was ter-
minated with the respondent’s filing of an
affidavit of compliance with the Michigan
Supreme Court on May 18, 2015.

Reprimands (By Consent)

Michael J. Golding, P30186, Southfield,
by the Attorney Discipline Board, Tri-County
Hearing Panel #68, effective June 11, 2015.

The respondent and the grievance ad-
ministrator filed a stipulation for a consent
order of discipline, in accordance with MCR
9.115(F)(5), which was approved by the At-
torney Grievance Commission and accepted
by the hearing panel.

Based on the respondent’s pleas, admis-
sions, and the stipulation of the parties, the
panel found that the respondent entered
into a business transaction with a client
without transmitting those terms to the cli-
ent in writing, in violation of MRPC 1.8(a)
(D); failed to obtain the client’s consent to
the loan in writing, in violation of MRPC
1.8(2)(3); violated or attempted to violate
the Michigan Rules of Professional Conduct,
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contrary to MRPC 8.4(a); engaged in con-
duct which exposed the legal profession to
obloquy, contempt, censure, or reproach, in
violation of MCR 9.104(2); and engaged in
conduct which violated the standards or rules
of professional responsibility adopted by the
Supreme Court, in violation of MCR 9.104(4).

In accordance with the stipulation of the
parties, the hearing panel ordered that the
respondent be reprimanded. Costs were as-
sessed in the amount of $936.10.

Thomas M. J. Lavigne, P58395, Detroit,
by the Attorney Discipline Board, Tri-County
Hearing Panel #14, effective June 13, 2015.

The respondent and the grievance ad-
ministrator filed a stipulation for a consent
order of discipline, in accordance with MCR
9.115(F)(5), which was approved by the At-
torney Grievance Commission and accepted
by the hearing panel. Based on the respon-
dent’s admissions, the panel found that the
respondent, in a criminal matter, used meth-
ods of obtaining evidence that violated the
legal rights of a person, contrary to MRPC
4.4; violated or attempted to violate the
Michigan Rules of Professional Conduct,
contrary to MRPC 8.4(a); engaged in con-
duct that is prejudicial to the administration
of justice, in violation of MRPC 8.4(¢c) and
MCR 9. 104(D); and engaged in conduct that
exposes the legal profession to obloquy,
contempt, censure, or reproach, in violation
of MCR 9.104(2).

In accordance with the stipulation of the
parties, the hearing panel ordered that the
respondent be reprimanded. Costs were as-
sessed in the amount of $765.22.

Suspension

Garner Keith Train, P30554, Clio, by
the Attorney Discipline Board, affirming the
hearing panel’s order of suspension for 45
days, effective February 20, 2015.

The respondent appeared at the hear-
ing but was found to be in default for fail-
ing to file an answer to the formal com-
plaint. Based on the respondent’s default,
the panel found that he neglected a legal
matter, in violation of MRPC 1.1(¢); failed to
act with reasonable diligence and prompt-
ness in representing his client, in viola-
tion of MRPC 1.3; failed to keep his client
reasonably informed about the status of his
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legal matter and failed to comply promptly
with reasonable requests for information,
in violation of MRPC 1.4(a). The panel fur-
ther found that the respondent engaged in
conduct prejudicial to the administration of
justice, in violation of MRPC 8.4(c) and MCR
9.104(1); conduct that exposed the legal pro-
fession to obloquy, contempt, censure, or
reproach, in violation of MCR 9.104(2); con-
duct which violated the standards or rules
of professional responsibility adopted by the
Supreme Court, contrary to MCR 9.104(4);
and failed to timely answer a request for in-
vestigation, in violation of MCR 9.104(7) and
MCR 9.113(A) and (B)(2).

The hearing panel ordered that the re-
spondent’s license to practice law be sus-
pended for 45 days. The respondent filed a
petition for review and stay of discipline.
The stay of discipline was automatically
granted and, upon review, the Attorney Dis-
cipline Board affirmed the hearing panel’s
order of suspension. Total costs were as-
sessed in the amount of $2,309.24.

Suspensions (By Consent)

David J. Duthie, P23265, Grand Rapids,
by the Attorney Discipline Board, Tri-County
Hearing Panel #74, for 180 days, effective
August 14, 2014.!

The respondent and the grievance ad-
ministrator filed a stipulation for a consent
order of discipline, which was approved by
the Attorney Grievance Commission and ac-
cepted by the hearing panel. The stipulation
contained the respondent’s admission that
he was convicted, by guilty plea, of oper-
ating while intoxicated/impaired—3rd of-
fense, a felony, in violation of MCL 257.6256D.
Based on the respondent’s convictions and
his admissions, the panel found that he en-
gaged in conduct that violated the criminal
laws of the state of Michigan, contrary to
MCR 9.104(5).

The hearing panel ordered that the re-
spondent’s license to practice law in Michi-
gan be suspended for 180 days, effective
August 14, 2014, as stipulated by the par-
ties. Total costs were assessed in the amount
of $774.76.

1. The respondent has been continuously suspended
from the practice of law in Michigan since August 14,
2014. Please see notice of automatic inferim
suspension, issued January 14, 2015.



Peter W. Macuga II, P28114, Grosse
Pointe Shores, by the Attorney Discipline
Board, Tri-County Hearing Panel #7, for
4 years and 11 months, effective August
28, 2014.!

The respondent and the grievance ad-
ministrator filed a stipulation for a consent
order of discipline, which was approved by
the Attorney Grievance Commission and ac-
cepted by the hearing panel. The stipulation
contained the respondent’s admission that
he was convicted, by plea, for obstruction
of justice, a felony, in violation of MCL
750.505; and for impaired driving, a misde-
meanor, in violation of MCL 257.6251. Based
on the respondent’s convictions and his ad-
missions, the panel found that the respon-
dent engaged in conduct that violated the
criminal laws of the state of Michigan, con-
trary to MCR 9.104(5).

The hearing panel ordered that the re-
spondent’s license to practice law in Michi-
gan be suspended for four years and eleven
months, effective August 28, 2014, as stipu-
lated by the parties. Total costs were as-
sessed in the amount of $770.07.

1. The respondent has been continuously suspended

from the practice of law in Michigan since August 27,

2014. Please see notice of automatic inferim
suspension, issued January 2, 2015.

Interim Suspensions Pursuant

to MCR 9.115(H)(1)

Evan A. Dixon, P45738, Hancock, by the
Attorney Discipline Board, Upper Peninsula
Hearing Panel #2, effective May 19, 2015.

After being properly served with the
formal complaint and the notice of hearing,
the respondent failed to personally appear
at the May 11, 2015 hearing. After satisfac-
tory proofs were entered that the respon-
dent possessed actual notice of the proceed-
ings, the hearing panel, in accordance with
MCR 9.115(H)(1), determined that the re-
spondent’s failure to appear warranted an
interim suspension from the practice of law
until further order of the panel.

On May 12, 2015, the panel issued an or-
der of suspension pursuant to MCR 9.115
(D), effective May 19, 2015, and until fur-
ther order of the panel or the Board.
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Ali S. Zaidi, P71435, Addison, Texas, by
the Attorney Discipline Board, Tri-County
Hearing Panel #3, effective February 19, 2015.

After being properly served with the for-
mal complaint and notice of hearing, the re-
spondent failed to personally appear at the
February 12, 2015 hearing. After satisfactory
proofs were entered that the respondent
possessed actual notice of the proceedings,
the hearing panel, in accordance with MCR
9.115(D (D), determined that the respondent’s
failure to appear warranted an interim sus-
pension from the practice of law until fur-
ther order of the panel.

On February 12, 2015, the panel issued
an order of suspension pursuant to MCR
9.115(FD (D), effective February 19, 2015, and
until further order of the panel or the Board.

Final Suspension With Conditions
(By Consent)

Paul F. Semperger, P20214, Plymouth,
by the Attorney Discipline Board, Tri-County
Hearing Panel #4, for 179 days, effective Sep-
tember 23, 2014.!

The respondent and the grievance ad-
ministrator filed a stipulation for a consent
order of discipline, in accordance with MCR
9.115(F)(5), which was approved by the At-
torney Grievance Commission and accepted
by the hearing panel. The stipulation con-
tained the respondent’s admission that he
was convicted of operating while intoxi-
cated, third, a felony, in violation of MCL
257.6256D. Based on the respondent’s con-
viction and his admission, the panel found
that the respondent engaged in conduct
that violated the criminal laws of the state
of Michigan, contrary to MCR 9.104(5).

The hearing panel ordered that the re-
spondent’s license to practice law in Michi-
gan be suspended for 179 days, effective
September 23, 2014, as stipulated by the par-
ties. Additionally, the panel ordered that the
respondent be subject to conditions relevant
to the admitted misconduct. Total costs
were assessed in the amount of $756.69.

1. The respondent was automatically reinstated to
the practice of law on May 18, 2015. Please
see notice of automatic reinstatement, issued
May 20, 2015.
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